
Lead Member for Children's and Young People's 
Services Briefing 
Dear Member,

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Lead Member for Children's and Young 
People's Services Briefing to be held as follows for the transaction of the business 
indicated.
Miranda Carruthers-Watt 
Proper Officer

DATE: Monday, 17 February 2020

TIME: 2.00 pm

VENUE: Members' Conference Room

AGENDA

1  Apologies for Absence 

2  Declarations of Interest 

3  Minutes of the previous meeting 

4  Items for Decision - Part One - Open to the Public - 

4a Direct award to Research In Practice - children's social work 
reference and training tool 

(Pages 1 - 6)

4b Direct award to The Broughton Trust for Learning City Parental 
Learning Hub 

(Pages 7 - 14)

4c Direct award to Salford Foundation for coordination of Learning City 
work and developing the Women's Project 

(Pages 15 - 22)

5  Exclusion of the Public 

6  Items for Decision - Part Two- Closed to the Public 

6a Secondary Pupil Forecast Summary and Site Proposal For Free 
School 

(Pages 23 - 24)

Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 2811
Liz Wright E-Mail: liz.wright@salford.gov.uk

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Part 1: Open to the Public – Item No.
.

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR FOR PEOPLE 
SERVICES

TO COUNCILLOR JOHN MERRY, LEAD MEMBER FOR 
CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE’S SERVICES

ON 

13TH FEBRUARY 2020

TITLE: Direct award to Research In Practice - children’s social 
work reference and training tool

RECOMMENDATIONS
It is recommended that an Exception to Contractual Standing Orders is approved to 
allow the award of a contract to Research In Practice to supply a children’s social 
work reference and training tool.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to request an exception to Contractual Standing Orders 
to approve the award of a contract for the Research In Practice (RIP) Service from 
01.04.20 to 31.03.22, on the basis of there being an integrated or strategic approach 
to procurement and also value for money reasons for awarding the contract. Further 
detail below

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: Research In Practice PB Report 29.11.17, RIP 
NorthWest Report and current RIP Specification .

KEY DECISION: NO

Page 1

Agenda Item 4a



2

DETAILS:
Background

The Council has a duty of care to safeguard and promote the welfare of the children 
and young people and families that are supported by its social services. In carrying 
out that duty it provides resources and training for social work professionals to 
support them to make better informed decisions in their work.  

RIP provides an online reference tool for all social workers (as well as any 
salford.gov.uk email users, including foster and adoptive carers). It includes: case 
studies written specifically for social care professionals; guidance on key pieces of 
legislation; expert articles and book reviews; practice guides and an online 
Continuous Professional Development resource, including E-Learning courses and 
face-to-face training opportunities. It also provides networking and learning 
opportunities in forums. For further detail see ‘current service specification’ 
embedded above. 

In 2016 Children’s Services was approached by the North West Association of 
Directors of Children’s Services (NWADCS) with the offer to join a NW consortium of 
local authorities to purchase a discounted, group RIP subscription. 

There was another option to take up a contract with Community Care Inform (CCI) 
who provided a similar service but at a higher price and which didn’t offer face-to-
face learning opportunities. Following successful initial delivery of the RIP contract 
from 2016 (as detailed in the PB report of 29.11.17 above) the contract was extended 
from 01.04.18 to 31.03.20 and so is now coming to an end. 

The offer for 01.04.20 to 31.03.22

NWADCS has negotiated a contract extension which includes all of the resources 
listed above plus: further collaborative work between the Consortium and RIP on 
policy resources and development to highlight good practice in the region; an 
additional 50 guest accounts for partner organisations across the region and an 
enhanced user web platform (see RIP report embedded above). 

The price for the new offer is £21,564 compared to £21,350 for the current service, 
which is a below-inflation 1% increase and overall gives a £8,436 (28%) discount to 
the usual two year price of £30,000. 

Strengths of the current provision

A number of strengths have been identified in the delivery of the current contract, 
these include:-

Strategic Collaboration 

All of the other 22 NW Local Authorities have again agreed to accept the new offer. 
The consortium approach has facilitated engagement and sharing on best practice 
and problem-solving, see ‘highlights and strengths’ Section 4 of the RIP report 
above. For example, RIP are leading on a ‘Change Project ‘Domestic Abuse and 

Page 2



3

Child Protection: Changing the conversation, making a difference for children and 
families’ comprising of two cohorts and with Salford collaborating with Knowsley, 
Stockport, Wigan and Wirral on this project. There will also be localised sessions in 
Manchester on ‘Young people and gangs: approaches to assessment and 
intervention to facilitate their disengagement’ in 2020.

Tailored resources 

Learning opportunities have been tailored for Salford with a three day Complex 
Safeguarding Programme and Trauma-informed Practice workshop being delivered 
to Salford’s requirements.

A popular and effective resource

Social Services Workforce Development team / RIP figures and surveys show:- 

 Web Pages viewed - 250 per cent up year-on-year in the last quarter. 

 New accounts up 9 per cent in the last quarter of 2019, with a 121% increase 
in accounts overall from end 2018 to now.

 
 Salford is among the highest users of National Event Programmes

 A recent survey reported that 90% of users found the information that they 
were looking for and 93% said that the information was useful in informing 
their practice,  23% saying it was ‘extremely useful ‘and 47% ‘very useful’.

 The Workforce Development Team will continue to survey usage and work to 
improve provision for all service users but overall this recent survey reported 
on good examples of how the RIP service has informed and improved delivery 
with comments including “an invaluable go-to site for up-to-date information” 
and “case study used in court”

Social Value
 The Research in Practice service is a service that forms part of the Social 

Justice programme at The Dartington Hall Trust (a Registered Charity).

 RIP is delivering the following under Salford’s‘10% Better’ Social Value 
objectives:-

 For people: building community spirit (increased community strength and 
resilience) – RIP’s resources provide education, training and up-skilling 
Salford staff, supporting them to do their jobs and so contributing to their 
wellbeing and resilience.

Climate change
 For the planet: improve environmental sustainability (improved impact of the 

local environment on people’s wellbeing) – RIP’s resources are all 

Page 3



4

downloadable, reducing the need to print hard copies and live webinars 
reduce the need to travel to training events, thus contributing to green travel 
objectives

Conclusions and recommendation
 As discussed the bespoke and specialist nature of the Consortium-negotiated 

service has come from a collaborative and strategic approach across the NW 
which continues to deliver value for money.

 The full benefits of this approach can be further and fully exploited in an 
extended contract from 01.04.20 to 31.03.22.

 The Workforce Development Team will continue to monitor and promote 
usage and improve the service for users and has a development plan which 
includes: building RIP into the induction process for new starters; RIP issues 
as a standing item in management meetings; further integration of RIP 
resources into CPD and PDR processes and ongoing promotion of RIP usage 
and related training opportunities. 

 It is recommended that the new Consortium offer is extended and other 
market developments and options be monitored and evaluated during the 
lifetime of the new contract with the possibility of going out to a further-
developed market for provision from 01.04.22, or the take up of any future 
offer from RIP from that date.

Other options considered and rejected
 In light of the unique strategic and collaborative, consortium-driven benefits 

and value for money (which will be enhanced from 01.04.20) the option to go 
out to market for provision at this stage was rejected.

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  CSD Children’s services Workforce Strategy

Under the Live Well strand of the Salford Start Well, Live Well, Age Well Locality 
Plan; Skills and Work Strategy.

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: Not 
applicable.

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: This is a low cost project which will be delivered 
by an experienced and equipped, provider and as such there is a very low risk of it 
not succeeding.

Page 4



5

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: 
Contact officer and telephone number: Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, tel. 219 6323; 
Date provided: 16.01.20

Ordinarily when commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services or the 
execution of works the Council as a ‘contracting authority’ must comply with the Public 
Contract Regulations 2015 (PCR) as well as the provisions of its own Contractual 
Standing Orders (CSO’s), Financial Regulations and the duties of Best and Social 
value. In addition, the PCR require that contracting authorities treat candidates equally 
and in a non-discriminatory way and act in a transparent manner, failing which the 
award of a contract may be subject to legal challenge. For contracts of this value the 
Council would usually undertake an exercise to obtain quotes from three suitably 
qualified providers.

However in exceptional circumstances where the Council’s Contractual Standing 
Orders permit, the Council may dispense with strict compliance of its CSO’s, and the 
report sets out the reasons for the request for the exception, such as the bespoke and 
specialist nature of the Consortium-negotiated service, arising from  a collaborative 
and strategic approach. Whilst exceptions to CSO’s may be authorised by an approval 
from the Strategic Director or Procurement Board (depending on the value of the 
contract), there is still a risk of challenge from aggrieved providers if the usual 
tender/quotation process has not been followed on the basis that it ought to have been 
advertised and put out to competition.

The risk of challenge increases with the value and duration of a proposed contract 
being awarded. Here the period proposed is short and is for a very low value, and a 
very tight time scale. Accordingly the risk of any such challenge may be regarded as 
extremely low. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:
The cost of this contract can be met from within the existing Children’s Services 
revenue budget for Specialist Services

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:
Contact officer and telephone number: Emma Heyes, Category Manager 0161 686 
6243, Date Provided 16.01.20

There is always a risk that any direct award of a contract, if made outside of the full 
competitive processes, could be subject to challenge by an aggrieved supplier on the 
basis that it ought to have been advertised and put out to competition. This risk cannot 
be eliminated.  This risk increases in tandem with the value and term of the contract.  I 
evaluate the risk of challenge to this decision to be low.

Page 5



6

Additionally the suppliers in this market for this type of system / online resource tool is 
limited.  The Council also has a requirement to ensure that it has adequate resources 
in place to train and support professional staff development.  Therefore, the risks 
associated with not approving this exception must be balanced against the risk of not 
having appropriate support mechanisms in place, which would not be in the best 
interests of the Council.

Strategic Directors in consultation with the Lead Member are authorised to approve an 
exception to Contractual Standing Orders for any contract with a value below £150k.

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Not applicable

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:
Report authors: For the planet: improve environmental sustainability (improved impact 
of the local environment on people’s wellbeing) – RIP’s resources are all 
downloadable, reducing the need to print hard copies and live webinars reduce the 
need to travel to training events, thus contributing to green travel objectives

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: Not applicable.

CONTACT OFFICERS: Chris Rourke, Workforce Development Manager, 
0161 607 7074 /  Steve Titley Commissioning Manager 0161 793 2435

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: All

Page 6



1

Part 1: Open to the Public – Item No.
.

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR FOR PEOPLE 
SERVICES

TO COUNCILLOR JOHN MERRY, LEAD MEMBER FOR 
CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE’S SERVICES

ON 

13TH FEBRUARY 2020

TITLE: Direct award to The Broughton Trust for coordination of 
Learning City work and developing Parental Learning Hub

RECOMMENDATIONS
It is recommended that an Exception to Contractual Standing Orders is approved to 
allow the award of a contract to The Broughton Trust for coordination of Learning City 
work and developing a Parental Learning Hub

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
The purpose of this report is to request an exception to contractual Standing Orders 
to approve the award of a contract to The Broughton Trust to support and coordinate 
the development of the Learning City concept and deliver a Learning City project 
from February 2020- August 2021. On the basis that the services are only obtainable 
from one provider and there is no other provider available to allow genuine 
competition and also that it would deliver best value to The Council. The project will 
work with partners to develop a Parental Learning Hub which will support parents to 
develop their skills and support their children’s learning

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: Learning City update.

Page 7

Agenda Item 4b



2

KEY DECISION: NO

DETAILS:
The benefits to both society and individuals of lifelong learning are well documented. 
For those that need to retrain because their jobs are at risk or have lives, wellbeing 
and productivity that could be improved by learning something new, it is essential 
that a vibrant, diverse and - most importantly - inclusive learning offer exists to 
support and enrich people throughout their lives. The Learning City concept is an 
emerging approach in Salford. Building a learning city is a collective and continuing 
journey. It requires a concrete action plan with strong political leadership and 
steadfast commitment, a structured dialogue and consensus involving all 
stakeholders, diverse celebratory events charged with enthusiasm and inspiration, 
easy accessibility and enjoyable experiences for all citizens, proper monitoring and 
evaluation of progress, and sustainable and secure funding

Creating this essential learning system, responsive to local needs, is challenging. A 
report by the Institute of Fiscal Studies found that nationally, funding for adult 
education was cut by 45% in 2009-10 and levels have not been restored. The only 
growth sector being adult apprenticeships. In 2017/18 the number of adults engaging 
in community learning, the traditional first steps into learning, fell from 650,000 to 
500,000 with the total number of adults currently in learning at an all-time low 
(Learning & Work Institute 2020). Evidence would also suggest that the learning 
opportunities that do exist are disproportionately taken by wealthier more highly 
skilled individuals.

While there is still a substantial formal and informal learning offer available to Salford 
residents, there still remains significant barriers, particularly for residents who would 
gain the greatest benefit from learning. Salford still has almost 16,000 adults without 
formal qualifications and one in four residents with poor basic skills. 

Adult learning (over 19 years) is funded through the newly devolved Adult Education 
Budget (AEB) and is delivered by 35 different providers in Salford. The current 
delivery models requires groups of 15-20 learners and curriculum is mainly focused 
on vocational or preparation for work.  Delivery is subject to OFSTED inspection and 
current funding rules allow for limited flexibility. Residents with poor previous 
experiences of education, low self-belief and confidence and lack a family learning 
culture, can find the system complex and off putting.

Since 2018 Salford Learning City - an initiative supported by key anchor partners 
including Salford City Council, Salford University, and Salford College, The Lowry 
and Salford CVS - has sought to address the issues within the current learning 
system. By using the community’s knowledge and expertise to create dynamic and 
interactive ideas to engage people into the fun and life changing ‘no strings attached’ 
educational and developmental learning opportunities that sit alongside and 
complement formal and academic learning. Recognizing a life course approach to 
learning and seeking to explore innovative and creative solutions to engaging 
families and individuals in learning in its broadest sense.

Page 8



3

GMCA has indicated that the AEB budget will evolve over the next couple of years to 
a more placed-based model. In order to influence that evolution, it is important that 
we understand how we can better engage and enthuse more of our residents with all 
forms of learning, particularly those facing the greatest barriers with the most to gain 
and to demonstrate the ability of learning to truly change a person life.

The Learning City is keen to explore how a different, informal and explorative 
approach to both learning and employer engagement could achieve outcomes for 
residents who would not engage in the current learning offer with its progression 
pathways into employment.

The consultation and coordination elements of the learning city will be developed in 
partnership with the Broughton Trust 

Walkden and Swinton COOP Academies Parental Learning Hub Aim 

This Learning City initiative is a partnership, led by Walkden Cooperative Academy, 
which aims to use innovative approaches to learning as a tool to engage with parents 
and start the discussion on how, through learning they could become more involved 
with their child’s education and better able to support their children’s learning by 
developing their own skills. The project will offer a bespoke learning programme 
informed by parents, embedded with additional support including Information Advice 
and Guidance (IAG), financial Inclusion, employment and wellbeing.

The main objectives of the Parental Learning Hub is to engage with parents to:

1. To feel confident and able to support their child’s learning at home and in 
school. 

2. To develop their own skills through both formal and informal learning 
opportunities.

3. To increase the engagement of all parents in school activities but particularly 
emphasis will be placed on parents of children with problematic attendance. 

4. To increase parent’s employability and knowledge of the jobs market. 
5. To support the development of, and to take advantage of, local employment 

opportunities and initiatives.
6. To ensure they are claiming appropriate benefits - including free school meals. 
7. To have the skills and knowledge to maximise their family’s wellbeing.

The Broughton Trust will act as a Learning City Ambassador within the project. They 
will work with the schools, City Council and other partners to support the 
development of  the Parental Learning Hub. 

Initially they will support a wide consultation with parents to inform the learning offer 
but other activities may include:

 Explore the idea of opening up spaces within the local community from which 
learning could take place.

Page 9



4

 Engage with local employers to explore employment opportunities for parents 
and pupils. 

 Develop progression pathways onto AEB funded community and Vocational 
Learning.

 Explore the role of trauma and adversity in barriers to engagement
 Explore the links with the RSA City of Learning initiative to accredited 

alternative learning through  a digital badges
 Explore the links with the Big Education Conversation to inform a wider 

consultation on learning in Salford

The project will run over 18 months during which an ongoing evaluation of the 
learning activity and its impact will take place

Outcomes for participants will fall into the following categories:

 Improvement in self-esteem and wellbeing
 Improvement in basic skills 
 Increased civil engagement
 Increased employability and will include employer engagement
 Progression to non-formal or formal learning
 Increased parental engagement in school activities including parent/teacher 

meetings
 Increase in pupil attendance

Evaluation will run throughout the project and will look at 

 Approaches to consultation
 Engagement of participants
 Delivery methods
 Progression pathways including employer engagement
 Individual impact
 Impact for the school
 Outcomes for the participants

Broughton Trust will report regularly to the Learning City on lessons learnt, emerging 
issues and the evolving understanding of the constraints and opportunities of the 
existing learning system. The evaluation of this project will be used to inform learning 
approaches to similar school communities, the wider learning offer in the city and will 
feed into a wider evaluation of the AEB budget as it moves to a stronger place based 
focus over the next 2 years.

Reasons for exception

 The services are only obtainable from one provider and there is no other 
provider available to allow genuine competition. The Broughton Trust has 
extensive experience of both community consultation in relation to learning,  
having carried out similar themed consultation in Broughton and Little Hulton  
and also of delivery of community learning within schools. They are the only 
AEB provider in Salford currently to do so. They are Matrix accredited IAG 

Page 10



5

provider and have been involved in the early development of the Parental 
Learning Hub. They are the only provider with this unique combination of 
experience and skills needed to deliver this project quickly and effectively.  

 Delivers Best Value to The Council
This project supports the development of an existing initiative, the Parental 
Learning Hub. The infrastructure including experienced staff and resources 
are already in place and therefore the money invested will purely go on 
delivering the outcomes and informing future commissioning decisions. For a 
limited time project with a relatively small budget it would not be economical 
for another provider to set up the infrastructure needed to deliver this project.

 
Social Value & Climate Change

 The Broughton Trust is registered charity that provide support for adults and 
young people to create a better future.

 The contract will be delivered under Salford’s 10% Better Social Value 
objectives  For People: building community spirit (increased community 
strength and resilience)
For the Planet: improve environmental sustainability (improved impact of the 
local environment on people’s wellbeing)

Conclusions and recommendations

 As discussed, the bespoke and specialist nature of The Broughton Trust in  
supporting the development of the Walkden and Swinton Coop Academies 
Parental Learning would delivery best value for The Council.

 The project will deliver learning, work and wellbeing outcomes and in addition 
explore how supporting parents to develop their own skills can impact on 
school outcomes for their children.

 It will inform future commissioning and delivery of the AEB budget in Salford.
 It will further the aims and objectives of The Learning City.
 It is recommended the Broughton Trust is offered a contract to delivery this 

project from 02.03.20.

Other Options considered and rejected

 In light of the service being only obtainable from one provider and there is no 
other provider available to allow genuine competition and that this contract 
would deliver best value to The Council, the option to go out to market for the 
provision at this stage was rejected

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  Under the Live Well strand of the Salford Start 
Well, Live Well, Age Well Locality Plan; Skills and Work Strategy.

Page 11



6

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: Not 
applicable.

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: This is a low cost project which will be delivered 
by an experienced and equipped, local provider and as such there is a very low risk 
of it not succeeding.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: 
Contact officer and telephone number: Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, tel. 219 6323

Date provided: 4.02.20

When commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services or works the 
City Council must comply with the requirements of the Public Contracts Regulations 
2015 (PCR), together with its own Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s), Financial 
Regulations, and secure Best Value in its purchasing. The PCR require that contracting 
authorities treat candidates equally and in a non-discriminatory way and act in a 
transparent manner, failing which the award of a contract may be subject to legal 
challenge. For contracts of the values referred to in the report, the Council would 
usually undertake an exercise to obtain written quotes from three suitably qualified 
providers on the Chest portal (between £10,000 and £75,000).

Whilst exceptions to CSO’s may be authorised by a decision notice from the Strategic 
Director, as detailed in section 3 of Part 5 of the Constitution there is still a risk of 
challenge from aggrieved providers if the usual competitive process has not been 
followed. The risk of challenge increases in tandem with the value and proposed length 
of the contract. In this instance the award for delivery of the services to the Broughton 
Trust is for a short term with a very low value.
Reasons for requesting approval for the direct award are set out in the report, namely 
value for money and providing best value going forward, but also specialist multi-
disciplinary service available only from the Broughton Trust.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:
Contact officer and telephone number: Chris Mee – 778 0434
Date provided: 4th Feb 2020
The source of funding is: Population Health Grant
Expenditure Code: E1690

Page 12



7

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:
Contact officer and telephone number: Christopher Conway, Tel 0161 686 6248
Date Provided. 05.02.2020
The project has been procured in accordance with Contractual Standing Orders under 
the Council’s constitution governing contract procurement to award by exception to a 
single provider due to the speciality of the service required and for Best value reasons 
as stated in the report.

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Not applicable

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:
Report authors: The contract will be delivered under Salford’s 10% Better Social Value 
objectives and will include objectives to be set with Broughton Trust in relation to the 
objective ‘ For the Planet: improve environmental sustainability (improved impact of 
the local environment on people’s wellbeing)

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: Not applicable.

CONTACT OFFICERS:  Debbie Blackburn 01616076678/ Angela Arthur 
Commissioning Manager 01617933408

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: Broughton

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Part 1: Open to the Public – Item No.
.

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR FOR PEOPLE 
SERVICES

 COUNCILLOR JOHN MERRY, LEAD MEMBER FOR 
CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE’S SERVICES

ON 

13TH FEBRUARY 2020

TITLE: Direct award to Salford Foundation for coordination of 
Learning City work and developing the Women’s Project

RECOMMENDATIONS
It is recommended that an Exception to Contractual Standing Orders is approved to 
allow the award of a contract to Salford Foundation for coordination of Learning City 
work and to deliver a Learning City  Women’s Project.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
The purpose of this report is to request an exception to contractual Standing Orders 
to approve the award of a contract to Salford Foundation to support and coordinate 
the development of the Learning City concept and deliver a Learning City project 
from 2nd March 2020- 31st August 2021. This is on the basis of the service is only 
obtainable from one provider and there is no other provider available to allow 
genuine competition and also that it would deliver best value to The Council. The 
project will explore initiative learning, employment and employer engagement 
approaches with users of a women’s centre in Eccles.

Evaluation of the project will be used to inform future commissioning approaches for 
Learning and Employer engagement and the delivery of the wider Adult Education 
Budget in Salford.   It will also provide an opportunity to work closer with our schools 
to develop meaningful employer encounters for target groups of young people to help 
them develop their skills for life and realise their potential and access the 
opportunities in our growing city.

Page 15

Agenda Item 4c



2

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: Learning City update.

KEY DECISION: NO

DETAILS:
The benefits to both society and individuals of lifelong learning are well documented. 
For those that need to retrain because their jobs are at risk or have lives, wellbeing 
and productivity that could be improved by learning something new, it is essential 
that a vibrant, diverse and - most importantly - inclusive learning offer exists to 
support and enrich people throughout their lives. The Learning City concept is an 
emerging approach in Salford. Building a learning city is a collective and continuing 
journey. It requires a concrete action plan with strong political leadership and 
steadfast commitment, a structured dialogue and consensus involving all 
stakeholders, diverse celebratory events charged with enthusiasm and inspiration, 
easy accessibility and enjoyable experiences for all citizens, proper monitoring and 
evaluation of progress, and sustainable and secure funding

Creating this essential learning system, responsive to local needs, is challenging. A 
report by the Institute of Fiscal Studies found that nationally, funding for adult 
education was cut by 45% in 2009-10 and levels have not been restored. The only 
growth sector being adult apprenticeships. In 2017/18 the number of adults engaging 
in community learning, the traditional first steps into learning, fell from 650,000 to 
500,000 with the total number of adults currently in learning at an all-time low 
(Learning & Work Institute 2020). Evidence would also suggest that the learning 
opportunities that do exist are disproportionately taken by wealthier more highly 
skilled individuals.

While there is still a substantial formal and informal learning offer available to Salford 
residents, there still remains significant barriers, particularly for residents who would 
gain the greatest benefit from learning. Salford still has almost 16,000 adults without 
formal qualifications and one in four residents with poor basic skills. 

Adult learning (over 19 years) is funded through the newly devolved Adult Education 
Budget (AEB) and is delivered by 35 different providers in Salford. The current 
delivery models requires groups of 15-20 learners and curriculum is mainly focused 
on vocational or preparation for work.  Delivery is subject to OFSTED inspection and 
current funding rules allow for limited flexibility. Residents with poor previous 
experiences of education, low self-belief and confidence and lack a family learning 
culture, can find the system complex and off putting.

Since 2018 Salford Learning City - an initiative supported by key anchor partners 
including Salford City Council, Salford University, and Salford College, The Lowry 
and Salford CVS - has sought to address the issues within the current learning 

Page 16



3

system. By using the community’s knowledge and expertise to create dynamic and 
interactive ideas to engage people into the fun and life changing ‘no strings attached’ 
educational and developmental learning opportunities that sit alongside and 
complement formal and academic learning. Recognizing a life course approach to 
learning and seeking to explore innovative and creative solutions to engaging 
families and individuals in learning in its broadest sense. 

GMCA has indicated that the AEB budget will evolve over the next couple of years to 
a more placed-based model. In order to influence that evolution, it is important that 
we understand how we can better engage and enthuse more of our residents with all 
forms of learning, particularly those facing the greatest barriers with the most to gain 
and to demonstrate the ability of learning to truly change a person life.

The Learning City is keen to explore how a different, informal and explorative 
approach to both learning and employer engagement could achieve outcomes for 
residents who would not engage in the current learning offer with its progression 
pathways into employment.

 The consultation and coordination elements of the learning city will be developed in 
partnership with Salford Foundation 

The Project - St Mary’s Women’s Centre, Eccles

This initiative, supported by the Learning City, is led by Salford Foundation. St Mary’s 
Women’s Centre (based at the old Sure Start Centre in Eccles), works with women 
with multiple and complex needs including a history of offending, social isolation and 
long term unemployment. They use a key worker approach to engage and support 
around 300 women to overcome difficulties and progress in life, covering everything 
from counselling and domestic abuse to fitness and wellbeing. The women within the 
project have face multiple barriers to accessing both the formal and non-formal 
learning offer. 

It is proposed that Salford Foundation are funded to act as Learning City 
Ambassadors who will  develop, deliver and evaluate a range of new and initiative 
approaches to engaging and supporting informal learning within St Mary’s Women 
Centre. It is expected that this will in turn inform alternative progression pathways for 
the women, including new approaches to employer engagement.

The project will run over 18 months and will deliver positive outcomes for women 
within the centre. However, its main focus will be the evaluation of alternative 
approaches to engaging and delivering learning and how those insights can be used 
to inform the wider education and learning system and how people who, would not 
readily engage in the current formalised learning offer be encouraged to explore 
learning as a pathway to self–development. 

Outcomes for participants will fall into the following categories:
 Improvement in self-esteem and wellbeing
 Improvement in basic skills 
 Increased civil engagement
 Increased employability and will include employer engagement

Page 17



4

 Progression to non-formal or formal learning
 Increased resilience to trauma and adversity

Salford Foundation will support a consultation with women using the centre to inform 
the learning offer but other activities may include:
 Explore the idea of opening up spaces within the local community from which 
learning could take place.

 Engage with local employers to explore employment opportunities women with 
complex needs

 Develop progression pathways onto AEB funded community and Vocational 
Learning.

 Explore the role of trauma and adversity both as a barrier to engagement and 
how learning could be used to support an individual to overcome it.

 Explore the links with the RSA City of Learning initiative to accredited 
alternative learning through a digital badges

 Explore the links with the Big Education Conversation to inform a wider 
consultation on learning in Salford

Schools:

Salford Foundation already have some string links with local secondary schools 
related to providing work related experiences however through Learning City this 
provides an opportunity to provide more targeted, meaningful interventions and 
activities which will help young people to understand the breadth of opportunity 
across the growth industries in Salford.  This links to our work around ‘Open Space 
Conferences’ by providing a young person-led approach to employer engagement 
and support the council and schools to understand, analyse and develop our 
approaches for future activity.  

Evaluation will run throughout the project and will look at 
 Approaches to consultation
 Engagement of participants
 Delivery methods
 Progression pathways including employer engagement
 Individual impact
 Outcomes for the participants

As Learning City Ambassadors Salford Foundation will report regularly to the 
Learning City on lessons learnt, emerging issues and the evolving understanding of 
the constraints and opportunities of the existing learning system. The evaluation of 
this project will be used to inform learning approaches to similar disengaged 
communities, the wider learning offer in the city and will feed into the ongoing 
evaluation of the AEB budget as it moves to a stronger place based focus over the 
next 2 years.

Reasons for exception

 The services are only obtainable from one provider and there is no other 
provider available to allow genuine competition 

Page 18



5

Salford Foundation are already the established provider with this St Mary’s 
Women’s community and this project will be an extension of the existing work. 
Their expertise with working with women with such complex issues couple 
with their understanding of the learning system and their established 
relationship with the women makes them uniquely positioned to deliver this 
project quickly and effectively.

 Delivers Best Value to The Council
This project will be in addition to established provision, St Mary’s Women’s 
Centre. The infrastructure including premises, staff and resources are already 
in place and therefore the money invested will solely go on delivering the 
outcomes and informing future commissioning decisions. For a limited time 
project with a relatively small budget it would not be economical for another 
provider to set up the infrastructure needed to deliver this project.

Social Value & Climate Change
 Salford Foundation is registered charity that provide support for adults and 

young people to create a better future.
 The contract will be delivered under Salford’s 10% Better Social Value 

objectives
For People: building community spirit (increased community strength and 
resilience).
For the Planet: improve environmental sustainability (improved impact of the 
local environment on people’s wellbeing).

Conclusions and recommendations
 As discussed the bespoke and specialist nature Salford Foundation to deliver 

this service to the women of St Mary’s Women Centre in a manner that would 
deliver best value for The Council.

 The project will deliver learning, work and wellbeing outcomes to a hard to 
reach, excluded community with complex needs

 It will inform future commissioning and delivery of the AEB budget in Salford
 It will further the aims and objectives of The Learning City
 It is recommended the Salford Foundation is offered a contract to delivery this 

project from 02.03.20.

Other Options considered and rejected
 In light of the service being only obtainable from one provider and there is no 

other provider available to allow genuine competition and that this contract 
would deliver best value to The Council, the option to go out to market for the 
provision at this stage was rejected

Page 19



6

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  Under the Live Well strand of the Salford Start 
Well, Live Well, Age Well Locality Plan; Skills and Work Strategy.

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: Not 
applicable.

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: This is a low cost project which will be delivered 
by an experienced and equipped, local provider and as such there is a very low risk 
of it not succeeding.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: 
Contact officer and telephone number: Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, tel. 219 6323

Date provided: 4.02.20

When commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services or the 
execution of works, the Council must comply with the requirements of the Public 
Contracts Regulations 2015 (PCR) and its own Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s) 
failing which the decision may be subject to legal challenge from an aggrieved provider. 

In exceptional circumstances, where CSO’s permit, the Council may dispense with 
strict compliance of its CSO’s, and the report sets out those reasons for the exception, 
such as Salford Foundation being a unique provider of the project and them providing 
value for money, in accordance with  paragraph 3.1 of CSO’s. Whilst exceptions to 
CSO’s may be authorised by an approval from the Strategic Director, there is still a risk 
of challenge from aggrieved providers if the usual tender process has not been 
followed on the basis that it ought to have been advertised and put out to competition.

CSO’s state that where the value of the services to be provided is between £10,000 
and £75,000, a minimum of three contractors should provide written quotations for the 
work. However, due to the specialist, unique nature of the provision of the Learning 
City project, it is proposed to award directly to Salford Foundation. Any risk of challenge 
to the appointment is extremely low, particularly bearing in mind the very low value of 
the commission and the specialist nature of the services. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:
Contact officer and telephone number: Chris Mee – 778 0434; Date provided: 4th Feb 
2020; The source of funding is: Population Health Grant
Expenditure Code: E1690

Page 20



7

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:
Contact officer and telephone number: Christopher Conway, Tel 0161 686 6248
Date Provided. 05.02.2020
The project has been procured in accordance with Contractual Standing Orders under 
the Council’s constitution governing contract procurement to award by exception to a 
single provider due to the speciality of the service required and for Best value reasons 
as stated in the report.

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Not applicable

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:
Report authors: The contract will be delivered under Salford’s 10% Better Social Value 
objectives and will include objectives to be set with Salford Foundation in relation to 
the objective ‘ For the Planet: improve environmental sustainability (improved impact 
of the local environment on people’s wellbeing)

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: Not applicable.

CONTACT OFFICERS:  Debbie Blackburn 01616076678/ Angela Arthur 
Commissioning Manager 01617933408

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: Broughton

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



PUBLIC INTEREST TEST – CHECKLIST
Schedule 12A Local Government Act 1972

Name of Report Secondary Pupil 
Forecast Summary and Site for a Free 
School.

Committee Lead Member Meeting for 
Decision

Date 13th February 2020

Category of exemption applied: 4 

Public Interest Test Questionnaire
This is not a definitive list. However, it does provide a series of questions that you 
should ask yourself when recommending confidentiality.

FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT DISCLOSING INFORMATION
Will disclosure help people to understand and participate in 
public debate about current issues?

No

Will disclosure help people to understand why the Council has taken 
certain decisions? 

Yes

Will disclosure give the public information about the personal 
probity (or otherwise) of elected members or council staff?

No

Will disclosure encourage greater competition and better value for money 
for council taxpayers? 

No

Will disclosure allow individuals and companies to understand 
decisions made by the Council that have affected their lives? 

Yes

Is the information about factors that affect public health and public 
safety? (NB you should be careful if considering the release of 
information which might adversely affect public health and safety)  

No

Will disclosure reveal incompetent, illegal or unethical decision-
making or examples of malpractice?

No

Will disclosure reveal that such maladministration has not in fact 
occurred?

Yes

Page 23

Agenda Item 6a



FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT WITHHOLDING INFORMATION
Will disclosure damage the Council’s interests without giving the 
public any useful information?

No

Will disclosure damage another organisation or person’s interests, 
without giving the public any useful information? 

No

Will disclosure give an unfair, prejudicial or inaccurate view of a 
situation?

Yes

Will disclosure prevent the effective delivery of services without giving 
the public useful information? 

No

Will disclosure put the health and safety of any group or 
individuals at risk? 

No 

Is there a clear and coherent reason why the community in general 
would benefit more from information being withheld? 

 

Yes

Justification of decision
(Please provide explicit reasoning)
The report contains information relating to the outline proposal for consideration.

At this stage, there are a number of decision makers involved, as such the final 
outcome is yet to be fully determined. At the point of when the final decision is taken, 
information will be made public and consultation will be undertaken in line with the 
relevant statutory processes.

Other documents attached? No

Name and Title:  Craig Monaghan – Head of School Organisation

Date: 05.02.20

Page 24


	Agenda
	4a Direct award to Research In Practice - children's social work reference and training tool
	4b Direct award to The Broughton Trust for Learning City Parental Learning Hub
	4c Direct award to Salford Foundation for coordination of Learning City work and developing the Women's Project
	6a Secondary Pupil Forecast Summary and Site Proposal For Free School

